in the year. During 1939, 760,000 persons entered the park to motor over the modern highways or to travel afoot or on horseback over the 500 miles of trails

Authority for establishment of the park was contained in the act of Congress approved May 22, 1926. In 1930 it was established, in a limited way, for protection and administration only, in accordance with Congressional approval of such limited park status upon the acquisition by the government (by donation) of 150,000 acres of land.

Most of the funds to purchase the lands within the approved boundaries were secured by donation. Contributions of citizens of North Carolina and Tennessee and appropriations by the legislatures of those two states raised approximately half the estimated cost of acquiring the required lands. John D. Rockefeller, Jr., through the Laura Spelman Rockefeller Memorial, offered to match contributions up to \$5,000,-000, in memory of his mother. Because of bank failures during the depression, which wiped out some donations, and of the inability of many to redeem their pledges through the same cause, and also because of rising land values, difficulty was met in securing all the land necessary to establish the park. President Roosevelt in 1933 allotted \$1,500,000 of emergency funds, and Congress appropriated \$743,265.20 to acquire the last remaining lands.

A short time ago a Founders Memorial Plaque, with the following inscription, was erected at Newfound Gap in the heart of the park:

For the permanent enjoyment of the people this park was given one half by the people and states of North Carolina and Tennessee and by the United States of America and one half in memory of Laura Spelman Rockefeller by the Laura Spelman Rockefeller Memorial founded by her husband, John D. Rockefeller.

THE MARINE BIOLOGICAL LABORATORY AT WOODS HOLE

An article in *The Collecting Net* gives an account of the annual meeting of the Corporation and Trustees of the Marine Biological Laboratory, by Dr. Charles Packard, director of the laboratory. At this meeting twelve new members of the corporation were elected as follows:

Dr. H. G. Albaum, Brooklyn College; Dr. C. A. Angerer, Ohio State University; Dr. F. A. Brown, Northwestern University; Dr. Leon Churney, University of Pennsylvania; Dr. G. Failla, Memorial Hospital, New York; the Reverend J. A. Frisch, Canisius College; Dr. F. A. Hartman, Ohio State University; Dr. Marie Hinrichs, Illinois Southern State Teachers' College; Columbus O'D. Iselin, Harvard University, Rockefeller Institute; Mrs. Rebecca Lancefield, Rockefeller Institute; Dr. Floyd Moser, University of Pennsylvania, and Dr. Eric Wald, Harvard University.

Trustees elected by the corporation were:

Dugald E. S. Brown, New York University; H. B. Bigelow, Harvard University; R. Chambers, New York University; W. E. Garrey, Vanderbilt University; S. O. Mast, the Johns Hopkins University; A. P. Mathews, University of Cincinnati; C. W. Metz, University of Pennsylvania; H. H. Plough, Amherst College; W. R. Taylor, University of Michigan.

Drs. Caswell Grave, R. G. Harrison and C. E. McClung, trustees who have reached the age of seventy years, were elected trustees emeriti.

Memorials to the following members of the corporation who have died were read:

Dr. H. McE. Knower, for many years librarian of the laboratory (read by R. G. Harrison).

Dr. M. M. Metcalf, trustee since 1897 (read by R. A. Budington).

Dr. Charles Zeleny, well remembered by the older investigators (prepared by F. Payne).

Captain John Veeder, for fifty years connected with the laboratory, in charge of the boats until his retirement (read by F. R. Lillie).

Discussion at both the meeting of the trustees and of the members of the corporation centered about the new addition to the library, now actually under construction. Dr. Packard states that the necessary funds for its erection have been given by the Rockefeller Foundation, which some years ago aided in the construction of the Brick Building. The new structure, 59×51 feet in outside dimensions, will have the same height and architectural style as the present building. The four tiers of stacks, corresponding to the present stack floors, will provide space for almost twice as many volumes as there are on hand at present. On all floors reading tables will be provided. On the upper two floors there will be a generous amount of space between the tables and the stacks, so that readers should not be disturbed by those who are moving about in the stacks. A part of the basement will be used for the sterilization of glassware, distillation of water and other services requiring steam. Two dark rooms are also provided.

THE DETROIT MEETING OF THE AMERAT WOODS HOLE

As has already been reported in Science, sessions of the American Chemical Society will open at Detroit on September 9 and will last through the week.

At two o'clock on Monday the first general session will be held in the Scottish Rite Cathedral of the Masonic Temple. The program will include the presentation of the Women's Award to Dr. Mary Engle Pennington and the presentation of the American Chemical Society Award in Pure Chemistry to Lawrence Olin Brockway. Dr. M. L. Crossley, of the American Cyanamid Company, will make an ad-